
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

AUGUST 19, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION  / Reverend  Paul Matthews / Jubilee Baptist Church 

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / August 5, 2013     

                                                   Council Work Session minutes / August 12, 2013 

                                                   Council Strategic Plan meeting minutes / August 12, 2013     

         

PUBLIC HEARING:   

 

a.) Amendments to the Land Use & Development Ordinance: 

1.)  Repeal Article 11-14(h) Common Open Space Provisions in its entirety and Replace with   

      Article 11-14(h) Open Space and Recreation Provisions 

2.) Amend Article 8 Definition of Terms to Add “No Clear Zone” 

3.) Amend Articles 8 & 35 Definition of Terms and Table of Permitted Uses as related to the     

     Community Standards Ordinance 2013-38 

 

                                                   

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 

   A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Conaway  

        Review minutes / August 12
th

  

a.) Financial Reports    

 Treasurers Report / June 30, 2013 / 7/31/13 

 Sales Tax Collection / June 30, 2013 

 Lodging Tax Collection June 30. 2013 

 

   B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE-  Davis          

         Review minutes / August 5
th

  

 

   C.   PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell           

   D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry  

          Review minutes / August 14
th

  

   

   E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune     

         Review Environmental Advisory Board minutes / November 28, 2012 – June 24, 2013  

           

         MOTION:  To support participation in the NOAA Community Resilience Index Program 

  

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones   

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis 

   D.  Library Board  - Lake 

   E.  Planning Commission – Scott   

 

 

 

 
1



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                             AUGUST 19, 2013                               PAGE   2 

 

 

   F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune 

         Review minutes / August 12
th

  

  

         MOTION: Appoint two members to the Recreation Board:  One 3 year opening / Term ends 2015 

                             and one 1 year opening / Term ends 2014 / Designate 

 

                Nominees:   

         a.)   Lawrence Yelding 

         b.)   David Dueitt 

         c.)   Victor LeJeune   

         d.)  Jolie J. Jones 

        

   G. Utility Board - Fry       

         Presentation:  Rob McElroy, General Manager for Daphne Utilities     

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

           a.) Parade Permit / Mystic Order of Persephone / February 28, 2014 / Rain Date March 1, 2014 

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

            City Clerk Report 

             

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

   

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS TO CONSIDER 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

        2
ND

  READ     
a.)    Amending Chapter 1 of the Employees Handbook:  Privately-Owned  

        Firearms and Ammunition in the Workplace  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-43 

 

b.)    Regulating the Keeping of Dogs, Cats, Domesticated  

        Animals, Livestock or Fowl within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-45  

 

        1
ST

 READ 
a.)   Amend Land Use & Development Ordinance / Common Space & 

       Recreation Provisions /  Definitions & Terms – No Clear Zone 

       Definitions & Terms – Related to Community Standards Ordinance. . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-46 

        

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN FRY      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

3



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e1
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGAINCE: 

Pastor Rife Stewart / Destiny Church gave the invocation. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell, John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis, 

III. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; 

Kyle Navarro, Attorney; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Michael Hoyt, Municipal 

Judge; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; 

Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; 

Anne Morris, Reference Librarian; Dorothy Morrison; Beautification and Downtown 

Redevelopment Authority; Willie Robison, BZA; Philip Durant, BZA; Al Guarisco, Village 

Point Foundation. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney; Tonja Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

July 15, 2013 Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections, the July 15, 2013 council meeting minutes stand approved as written. 

 

July 22, 2013 Strategic Plan meeting minutes  

There were no corrections to the July 22, 2013 Strategic Plan meeting minutes, and the minutes 

stand approved as written. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The committee will meet August 12
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY  COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The June 12
th

 minutes are in the packet, and the next meeting will be August 14
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be August 12
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

4



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e2
 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The July 15
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be August 19
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to support of the Village Point Foundation 

proposal to the Forever Wild Program regarding the purchase of a parcel of land 

bound by Hwy 98 to the east, Interstate 10 to the south and Hwy 90 (Causeway) to the 

north.    Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR    NAY    NONE OPPOSED       MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 
      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

There was not a quorum for the June 24
th
 meeting. 

  

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

There was not a meeting in July.  The next meeting will be August 26
th
 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

No meeting in July or August.  Mr. Lake reported there were 115 new cards and 230 in July.  Circulation 

in May was 20,383 and July was 41,181.  There were 28 request for books, and just today there were 48 

requests. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 
The June 27

th
 minutes are in the packet along with the July 2, 9 and 16 sign Committee minutes. 

a.)  Set a Public Hearing Date for September 16, 2013 and to approve advertising to consider: 

 

                 Revisions to the Zoning Map / Favorable Recommendation 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to set a Public Hearing date for September 16, 2013 and to 

approve advertising to consider:    

                               a.) Revisions to the Zoning Map / Favorable Recommendation      

                                                

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED                                 
   

b.)  MOTION:  To extend the deadline for the Sign Committee’s revisions to the Sign  

                      Ordinance 

 

5



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e3
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to extend the deadline for the Sign Committee revisions to 

the Sign Ordinance to September 24, 2013.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

a.)  MOTION:  To appoint two members to the Recreation Board: 

                            One 3 year opening and one 1 year opening / Designate 

 

The City Clerk received another resume today, which was the closing to receive resumes, and 

Council agreed to postpone the appointment of new members until the next council meeting. 

 

Nominees: 
a.)   Lawrence Yelding 

b.)   David Dueitt 

c.)   Victor LeJeune   

 

b.)   Reappoint:  Rick Cleveland  / Term 2011 - 2014 

                             Matt Cunningham / Term 2012 – 2017 

                             Frank Pierce / Term 2013-2018 

                             Lisa O’Hara / Term 2011 – 2016 

                             Kit Smith / Term 2012 – 2018 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to reappoint Rick Cleveland / Term 2011-2014; 

Matt Cunningham / Term 2012-2017; Frank Pierce / Term 2013-2018; Lisa O’Hara / Term 

2011-2016 and Kit Smith / Term 2013-2018.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

The next meeting will be August 14
th

 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

      G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The minutes for the May 29
th

 meeting are in the packet. The next meeting will be July 31
st
 5:00 

p.m. in the council chambers. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

6



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e4
 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

No report. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported they have registered 530 for soccer, 170 for 

football, 50 for cheerleading, and there are 43 adult teams and 140 kick-ballers. They are into fall 

registration. 

 

James White – Fire Chief – reported that they are hosting Community Emergency Response 

classes on August 16, 17, 23, and 24, and for anyone interested to call the Fire Department. 

 

Michael Hoyt – Municipal Judge – reported the new magistrate, Landra Burton, started last 

Monday, and is doing a great job. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported the city has been awarded the final 

ATRIP funds for two (2) projects - $641,000 to pave North Main Street from US 98 to the 

Jubilee Square Shopping Center – the project requires a $223,000 match from the city to cover 

the total cost of $864,000.  ATRIP funding of $1.27 million will go toward Phase 4 of the 

repaving project in Lake Forest, requiring a $433,000 match by the city.  The $1.7 million will 

repave the remaining portion of Ridgewood Drive and Windsor Drive to North Main Street. He 

also reported that the City of Daphne received a $75,000 Recycling Grant where they partnered 

with several other cities.  The grant will pay for a commercial to be aired by all cities 

participating in the grant. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported the Taste of the Eastern Shore is August 

23
rd

, and they have sold 828 tickets.   

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca Hayes –  
MOTION:  Change the September 2, 2013 Council meeting due to Labor Day 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to change the September 2, 2013 Council meeting to 

Tuesday, September 3, 2 013.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Councilman Davis said that the Buildings and Property meeting will move to Tuesday, 

September 3
rd

. 

 

 

 

 

7



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e5
 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Mr. David Tarwater – Baldwin County Board of Education – 611 Maxwell Avenue – spoke 

regarding the importance of long term funding for S.E.E.D.S., and thanked the city for 

contributing to the schools. 

 

Ms. Dana Bottoms – 11532 Eliza Circle – Principal for W.J. Carroll Intermediate School – 

spoke in support of funding S.E.E.D.S proposal. 

 

Ms. Jordan Caraway – Lake Forest – Student at Daphne Middle School – spoke supporting 

funding for S.E.E.D.S. 

 

Ms. Ashley Robison – 703 Pine Street – asked for a water fountain at Joe Patrick Park. 

 

Mr. Stuart Allhands – 8675 PineRun – spoke regarding the rezoning of Interstate-Baldwin, 

LLC asking Council to use caution, to use discretion and ask questions regarding the present 

access and the gated off public street. 

 

Mr. Ray Pearson – 30102 LePalma Circle - opposes the rezoning ordinance for Interstate-

Baldwin, LLC as it is unsafe. 

 

Mr. David Hueitt – Lake Forest – thanked the city for improving the roads in Lake Forest, and 

asked council to stop and think before acting on the Interstate-Baldwin rezoning ordinance in 

order  to give Mr. Cox and TimberCreek time to work out their differences. He spoke about the 

impact to the environment, and asked Council not to move too fast on the rezoning.  

 

Ms. Washington – representing her nephew, Mr. Clarence Herbert who lives at 1707 Pollard 

Road  -  spoke in opposition to the rezoning of the John and Deborah Kim property. 

 

Mr. Ian Waters – TimberCreek POA -   said that the POA voted 3/1 not to purchase the property 

owned by Interstate Baldwin, LLC. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

       RESOLUTIONS: 
a.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorizing the Mayor 

       to Dispose of Such Property. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-40 

 

b.)   Revisions to City of Daphne Street Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-41 

 

c.)   Support Daphne Utilities Position Opposing the Pipeline within the  

       Watershed of Big Creek Lake . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-42 

8



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e6
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Resolutions 2013-40, 2013-41 

and 2013-42.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolutions 2013-40 and 2013-41.  Seconded by 

Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Resolution 2013-42 with the following 

amendment: 

 

Change title: from  Support Daphne Utilities in Opposing  to  The City of Daphne and 

Daphne Utilities Opposes 

 

Delete:  after  Now, therefore be it resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Daphne delete to support Daphne Utilities  change to   that the City of Daphne joins together 

with Daphne Utilities in opposing 

 

  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

       ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ 
a.)   Rezone: John & Deborah Kim / Property located Southwest 

        of the Intersection of Pollard Road & County Road 64. . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-39 

 

b.)   Rezone:  Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC / 

        Property Located Northwest of the Intersection of TimberCreek 

        Subdivision and Interstate 10 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  /Ordinance 2013-40 

 

c.)   U.S. 98 (SR42) Service Road Extension in Baldwin County  

        Agreement for Preliminary Engineering, ROW Acquisition, 

        Utilities and Construction. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-42 

 

d.)    Appropriation of Funds:  S.E.E.D.S  
        (Supporting Educational Enrichment in Daphne School’s) . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-44 

 

9



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e7
 

        1
ST

 READ 

a.)    Amending Chapter 1 of the Employees Handbook:   

        Privately-Owned Firearms and Ammunition in the Workplace. . . . . /Ordinance 2013-43 

 

b.)    Regulating the Keeping of Dogs, Cats, Domesticated  

        Animals, Livestock or Fowl within the City of Daphne . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-45  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-39.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

NO MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 2013-39.  ORDINANCE FAILS 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-40.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adopt Ordinance 2013-40.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 
Councilman Davis presented the following facts: 

 

a. Currently 437 homes use Pine Run to access TimberCreek Blvd. 

b. Phase 11 will add 100 homes to the end of Pine Run 

c. Wetlands & Uplands buffer area (46.5 acres of Phase 11 and 24.8 acres of Phase 10-B) will go to the   

    TimberCreek Property Owners Association 

 

Area Study: 

a. Traffic analysis to determine what can be done to improve traffic flow (i.e. 3 way stops, speed limit decrease,    

     traffic trays, etc.) 

b. Second access, Wilson Drive (Spanish Fort) and/or Woodrow Lane 

c. Highway 13 interchange (Phase 10-B) 

d. Storm Water Runoff – Timber Creek and Lake Forest 

e. Joint Public/Private Development – Lake, Nature Trails and Utility Expansions 

 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED 

10



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e8
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-42.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE   ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2013-42.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

Council discussed the ordinance and requested that it be on the work session agenda for further 

discussion. 

 

Councilman Lake withdrew his motion and Councilwoman Conaway withdrew her second. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to postpone Ordinance 2013-42 until at he August 19, 

2013 council meeting.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Council President Scott turned the gavel over to Councilwoman Conaway, Council 

President Pro tem, to chair the meeting for the vote on Ordinance 2013-44 due to a conflict 

of interest. 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-44.  Seconded 

by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, LeJeune, Davis               ABSTAIN    Scott 

 

                                                              MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e9
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2013-44 with the following 

amendment: 

 
DELETE THE FOLLOWING: 

WHEREAS, S.E.E.D.S has requested $100,000 for the following projects: Enrichment of the K-12 learning 

experiences through activities including but not limited to: establishment of foreign language studies for grades K-6, 

Hobson’s Naviance College and Career-readiness platform, and 135 iPads for Grades K-6. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, that $100,000 

from the General Fund is hereby appropriated  to S.E.E.D.S for  enrichment projects to include:  

 $34,000 - establishment of foreign language studies for grades K-6 

 $13,000 -  Hobson’s Naviance College and Career-readiness platform  

 $52,700 - 135 IPads for Grades K-6   

 

 

 

REPLACE WITH THE FOLLOWING: 
 

WHEREAS, S.E.E.D.S has requested funding for the following projects: Enrichment of the K-12 learning 

experiences through activities including but not limited to: establishment of foreign language studies for grades K-6, 

Hobson’s Naviance College and Career-readiness platform, and 135 iPads for Grades K-6. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, that $35,000 

from the General Fund is hereby appropriated to S.E.E.D.S for enrichment projects or other classroom 

enhancements that will benefit the Daphne students, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all 

documents required in order for the City of Daphne to participate in the S.E.E.D.S. agreement.  

Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, LeJeune, Davis                   ABSTAIN    Scott 

 

                                                            MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

 

ORDINANCES 2013-43 and 2013-45  ARE  1
ST

 READ. 
 

 

Councilwoman Conaway passed the gavel back to Council President Scott. 

 

 

 

12



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e1
0

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilman Davis thanked everyone for coming out and giving their input.  He feels it is 

important for people to see how things come about. He mentioned a phrase he thought applies: 

history made us friends, economics made us partners and necessity made us allies.  He said time 

will tell if their decisions were good ones. 

 

Councilman LeJeune said he would like to have the backdrop that Mr. Tarwater had during 

Public Participation when he is speaking.  He said school is only two (2) weeks away. 

 

Councilman Fry thanked everyone for coming.  He thinks it is nice to know the public cares and 

wants to know what is going on.  He thanked Chief Carpenter and Sgt. Gulsby for inviting him to 

participate in a training simulator.  It put you through several scenarios where you have to make 

quick decisions, and until he went through this he did not appreciate how quick the city’s public 

safety officers have to make a decision. He appreciated the invitation and really enjoyed the 

experience. 

 

Councilman Lake is glad to be partnering with S.E.E.D.S., and hopes they will continue to 

grow. He mentioned there are some dead oak trees on US Highway 98, and thinks they may have 

been poisoned.  He said they were in a tree protection zone, and that the Police Department 

should investigate. 

 

Councilman Rudicell said he is thankful that they live in a safe country, and asked everyone to 

take time this week to remember those in the armed forces that put their lives on the line every 

day, and to also remember their families. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway recognized the teachers, administrators and staff members that were 

present, and said she appreciates the job they do for students.  She encouraged them to come 

back and visit with council anytime. 

 

Mayor Haygood recognized Coach Todd being in the audience, and it was great to see all the 

teachers and principals in the audience.  He said he was disappointed that Hunter Sessions was 

not at the meeting, but Jordan filled in quite well.  He said it was wonderful to see the youth get 

up and speak before a large audience.  He mentioned that they will be having Incident Command 

sessions Wednesday and Thursday from 8:00 a.m. – 11:30.a.m.  He said he looks forward to the 

partnership with S.E.E.D.S. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13



AUGUST 5, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e1
1

 

 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adjourn the meeting.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNEDAT 8:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

         

                                                     

__________________________________    

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk       

 

        Certification of Presiding Officer,    

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Ron Scott, Council President      

14



AUGUST 12, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

  

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director. 

 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

 

 

1. PARTICIPATION IN THE NOAA COASTAL RESILIENCE INDEX PROGRAM / 

MIKE SHELTON 

Mr. Shelton presented the program saying it is a community self-assessment.  It is a look at itself 

with a series of different categories regarding storms or other disasters.  It will bring the business 

community and ecumenical community along with city representative together to go over seven (7) 

topics for about 90 minutes to see what how to recover from a disaster.  It will identify training 

needs, equipment needs, sister cities that can help the city recover. 

 

Mayor Haygood said this would go along with the city’s Emergency Operation Plan. 

 

Council President Scott tasked the Mayor with gathering the information. 

 

2. ORDINANCE 2013-42 / EXNTENSION OF US 98 SERVICE ROAD 

Richard Johnson gave the cost for the project saying the city will be responsible for 1/3 of the cost 

which is capped at $242,000.  Two Step partners has been having some partnership problems, and if 

Two Step bows out the project ends, 

 

Council President Scott said there are two (2) things to consider: 

1. Are the partners reliable 

2. Is this the highest priority for spending the city’s money 

 

Consensus of council was to wait to see if Two Step Partners signs on before putting the ordinance 

back on the agenda. 

 

3. ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY 

Mr. Tom Lott with the Ruff Wilson Youth Organization asked council to consider funding the club 

$20,000 per year.  Funds are down, and they do what they can to raise funds, but it is not enough.  

He said their goal is to educate and bring along underprivileged children.   

 

Council President Scott said this would be money well spent. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway said the club is in dire need of funds. 

 

Council President Scott said that they will consider this request with the 2014 budget as a line item 

budget item.   

15



AUGUST 12, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

 

4.  RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section II   

Strike the last sentence regarding agenda items 

 

Section V 

Add - City Clerk Report after Department Heads Report 

 

Section VI 

a.   Add - work session to deadlines 

b. Change - the time for turning in council agenda and work session items to 12:00 on the    

Wednesday before the meeting 

c.    Add – Post council packet on city’s website on Monday morning of the council meeting 

 

Section VIII 

a.    Separate public participation rule from presentation rule with a breakdown: Public 

Participation and Presentation headings 

b. Change  - the time limit for Presentations to 10 minutes 

c.    Change - time for Presentation synopsis to be delivered to the City Clerk to 12:00 on the 

Wednesday before the meeting 

 

Section XIV 

a.    Add - roll call vote to the second sentence where it says the presiding officer shall put the 

motion to a (roll call) vote 

b. Add - to the third sentence where it says: If the majority of the council shall vote in favor of 

the motion for executive session the body shall - Add - upon certification of the city attorney 

that the reason for entering into executive session is legal according to the Open Meetings 

Act. 

 

Section XVII 

That the rules of the Council may be temporarily suspended by unanimous roll call vote of all 

members present. 

 

Section XXI 

a.    Add - department heads or designee and delete employees 

 

b. Add -W Department Heads shall stay at the meeting after Department Heads Report when 

they have items on the agenda items. 

 

c.   The city attorney will check to see if the city has to have an appointed City Engineer and if 

the City Engineer is required under state code to attend council meetings.   

 

 

16



AUGUST 12, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e3
 

 

Section XXIII 

Designate Council will adopt Roberts Rules of Order 11
th

 edition. 

 

 

Section XXV 

Change - all motions that come from committees still need a second  to  do not need a second. 

 

 

Mayor Haygood presented a proposal to shorten the process for rezonings.  He proposed setting all 

Public Hearings on the second council meeting of the month, and have the ordinance for a first read 

on the first council meeting. He said citizens come to the Public Hearing thinking the ordinance will 

be voted on at that meeting. 

 

Council had questions about this procedure and wanted to think the proposal over before making a 

decision. 

 

Mr. Davis made comments regarding Section IX. He feels the councilmember for the district that an 

ordinance is pertaining to should make the motions. 

 

5.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

Rebecca A. Hayes,                                                                     

City Clerk                                                                                                                                             

       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Ron Scott,     

      Council President   

17



AUGUST 12, 2013 

STRATEGIC PLAN MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

4:30 P.M. 

 

 

P
ag

e1
 

Councilman Davis called the meeting to order at 4:42 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Councilwoman Conaway; Councilman Rudicell Councilman Lake; Councilman Fry; 

Council President Scott; Councilman LeJeune; Councilman Davis; Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City 

Clerk; Sarah Toulman Assistant City Clerk; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Vicki Hinman, 

Human Resources Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director. 

 

Also Present:  Troy Strunk, WS Designs, Landscape Architecture. 

 

1. PUB LIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

2. VISION STATEMENT 

Council changed some wording to the Vision Statement omitting the “a” in the phrase “promotes a high 

quality of life.: 

 

“The City of Daphne is committed to a family oriented environment that promotes a high quality of life, 

strong sense of community and the fostering of educational, cultural and business growth.” 

 

3. STAKEHOLDERS 

Councilman Davis presented the draft letter to the stakeholders, and suggested that it should be the Mayor 

who signs the letter. 

 

Discussion was held on compiling the stakeholders list, and getting all the POA’s in the city.  The City 

Clerk will check with Public Works, the Planning Department, Daphne Utilities and the Baldwin County 

Board of Realtors on getting a list of POA’s in Daphne.   

 

4. MISSION STATEMENT 

The committee agreed upon some changes to the mission statement: 

 

“Our mission is to serve our citizens and visitors with a caring attitude including respect, trust, 

innovation, inclusion, flexibility and communication.  We will strive to promote a well-designed 

municipality, sustain and protect our resources, deliver timely quality professional services and maintain 

public safety and security and be. We are proud of our character, history, culture and the quality of life 

afforded by our community we all enjoy.” 

 

 

5. GOALS 

The committee added another goal: 

 

1, Strong and diverse economy 

2. Safe and secure community 

3. Thriving and livable neighborhoods  /  Also apply to the downtown area 

             a.    Roads 

4. Well managed city 

5. Positive image 

18



AUGUST 12, 2013 

STRATEGIC PLAN MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

4:30 P.M. 

 

 

P
ag

e2
 

6. Healthy and active citizenry   

7.         Enhance transportation and infrastructure 

 

The following can be added as subsections of the goals: 

 

1. Support schools 

2. Affordable housing 

3. Safe environment 

4. Encourage community involvement  

5. Expand recreational facilities 

6. Support the expansion of educational opportunities 

7. Work to sustain existing jobs and attract new jobs 

8. Improve economic development opportunities  

 

Also discussed: 

 

1. To work cooperatively with surround governmental agencies  

2. To establish an inventory of health care facilities in the city and surrounding area 

3. Focus on customer service / Surveys 

4. Give department heads a list of the goals and have them give their input on ways they can help  

        accomplish the goals 

 

Councilman Davis asked council to mention the Strategic Plan to the committees they chair or are a 

liaison for their input. 

 

6. WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

There were no other necessary items to discuss. 

 

The next meeting in two weeks, August 26
th
.  

The meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m. 

 

Submitted by 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

 

Certification of Presiding Officer 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Ron Scott, Council President 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

44



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

   AUGUST 12, 2013 

4:00 P.M. 

 

I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman 

Joseph Davis, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accounting 

Technician Sue Moody. 

 

Councilman John Lake was absent. Mayor Dane Haygood arrived at 4:03.         

 

Also in attendance were Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard Johnson,                    

and Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen.  . 

 

 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
 No public participation. 

 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 

      Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 
Accounting Technician                Open 

Finance Director     Open 

Revenue Officer     Open 

Sr. Mechanic      DOH: 8/8/2013  

(2) PT Public Service Workers   Reviewing Applications 

Public Service Worker    Reviewing Applications 

Crossing Guard     Reviewing Applications 

 
Mrs. Hinman noted that after the report was submitted an offer has been made for a new Revenue Officer.  The 

Mayor noted that the new Revenue Officer will begin work on 8-26-13 and that he had also made an offer to fill 

the Finance Director position but he wanted to speak to all council members on the way that position is being 

structured and noted that he could speak to Council at the Work Session tonight.   

 

Safety Committee Meeting, July 31, 2013 – Committee will research grants for Confined Spaces training.  This 

would primarily be for employees in the Street Department. 

 

Mrs. Hinman discussed City recognized departments responsible for the City receiving grant funds.  Mrs. 

Hinman noted that Mrs. Tonja Young, Library Director had applied for  a $25,000 grant of which the City was 

awarded and she asked  Mr. Johnson to review the Public Works Grants awarded.  Mr. Johnson stated that 

Tracey Miller, Solid Waste Coordinator had applied for two grants and noted the City was awarded: $37,000 for 

Recycling Equipment (Glass Crusher and Recycle Carts) and $75,000 for a Recycling Advertising Campaign.   

 

Mrs. Hinman reminded everyone that the Employee Benefits/Wellness Fair is tomorrow, August 14
th
  from 

11a.m. – 2 p.m. and she encouraged everyone to come. 
 

 

 

 

45



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 

 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  July, 2013 

 

The Treasurer’s Report totaling $18,761,690.99 was presented by Mrs. Henson.  Mrs. Conaway noted that 

June’s final Treasurer’s Report and July’s were both in the packet.  Mrs. Henson noted that the previous two 

month’s Treasurer’s Reports could not be presented at that time as reconciled report  due to loss of personnel in 

the Finance Department.   Ms. Henson noted that Mrs. Manning, who had returned out of retirement in May to 

work two days a week to assist with training the new hire for her position had been off for two weeks prior to 

returning so cash receipts entries were behind.  Mrs. Henson noted that Mrs. Manning’s only duty now is to 

enter cash receipts (Finance currently has a temp to process Purchase Orders) and that she was able to enter all 

July’s cash receipts just prior to the Finance packet being prepared.  Mrs.  Henson noted that Ms. Manning is off 

this week so cash receipts are behind at this time and this may affect presenting next month’s Financials in the 

September packet.  Mrs. Henson also noted that Mrs. Manning had advised that she would be officially retiring 

the first week of October, but that date may need to be moved to Sept 30
th
 since the Mayor is proposing to cut 

this Accounting Technician position in the FY2014 Budget.  (Note:  Other smaller duties of the vacant position 

are being rotated around to other Finance personnel with the temp working  approximately  20 hours/week  to 

process Purchase Orders.)   Mrs. Henson also noted that one of the two remaining accounting technicians is out 

on leave at this time. 

 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: $1,097,507.32  - June 30 , 2013 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted that sales tax collections were down $24,781 for June 

from what was budgeted.  Mr. Scott discussed that changes were made to the online payment system which may 

have delayed some payments and that might account for the deduction in June’s collections. 

     
3.  Lodging Tax Collections:  71,090.69 -  June 30  , 2013  

Discussion was made on what the surrounding Cities collect for Lodging Tax and that the City of Foley is 

currently considering increasing their Lodging Tax rate.  Mr. Scott noted that Daphne’s Lodging Tax rate is 4%. 

 

4. Report:  New Business Licenses- July, 2013 

Mrs. Conaway reviewed the Business License report. 

 

5. Review Bill Paid Report - July , 2013 

The Bills Paid report was presented and reviewed.  

 

B.  Special Finance Committee Meeting – need to set a date 

Mr. Scott discussed setting a date for a Special Finance Committee Meeting to discuss the FY2014 Budget.   

      

Motion by Mr. Scott to schedule a Special Council Finance meeting on Wednesday, August 28
th

, 

2013, and invite all Council members to discuss FY2014 Budget.                                                

Seconded by  Mr. Davis.   Motion carried. 
 

  

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

 

VI. ADJOURN   
Meeting was adjourned at 4:19 p.m.  

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, August 5, 2013 5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 

Committee 

Councilman Joe Davis, Chair 

Councilman Randy Fry 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

Mayor Dane Haygood 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 

Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 

Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator 

 

Committee Minutes 

 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis, Councilman Randy Fry, Councilman Pat Rudricell, Mayor Dane 

Haygood, Richard Merchant, Frank Barnett, Margaret Thigpen, Richard Johnson, Councilman 

John Lake, Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary) 

Absent: Rick Whitehead 

The meeting brought to order at 5:35 pm by Chairman Joe Davis 

1. Approval of the Minutes: Motion by Mr. Rudicell to adopt the July 1, 2013 minutes 

as written.  Seconded by Mr. Fry.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

2. Civic Center & Bayfront Report: Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her 

reports, noting the upcoming event Taste of the Eastern Shore, with 28 written 

confirmed vendors and 8 verbally confirmed vendors.  Also noted were Savvy Mom 

bookings for October and March.  Figures shown indicated that revenues to date are 

ahead of pace from the previous fiscal year.  Ms. Thigpen also mentioned the decking 

project at Bayfront was scheduled to begin on August 12. 

 

3. Building Inspection Monthly Reports: Richard Merchant reported that 15 new 

residential projects had been started, with 123 permits filed during July.  Total job cost 

was $5,502,688.17 with permit fees totaling $39,797.05.  

 

4. Daphne Search and Rescue: Mr. Davis updated the committee, stating that he had 

not been in touch with Daphne Search and Rescue, nor have they attempted to contact 

him.  Mr. Davis will contact again if needed. 

 

54



5. Nicholson Center: Frank Barnett reported that the reroofing of the Nicholson Center 

was all but complete, and soon the crews would move on to complete work on City Hall.  

He had cleaning crews remove all roofing debris from the premises.  Additionally, Mr. 

Barnett reported that the two doors in the back hallway of City Hall were to be repairs on 

August 9th. 

 

6. Water Fountain at Joe Louis Patrick Park: A citizen asked that the committee 

consider adding a water fountain at Joe Louis Patrick Park.  Mr. Johnson stated that they 

would look into it.  It was noted that the water was already present at the park, a bubbler 

or fountain would simply need to be installed.   

 

Chairman Davis asked that Ms. Toulson contact the citizen and inform her that this item 

was being discussed and considered. 

 

7. Other items:  

 

a. Surplus Property Resolution: It was noted that garbage truck 1207 should 

be hauled off as surplus property. 

 

b. Corner of Pollard and West Spring Pines Property: Mayor Haygood 

noted that the City had received the deed for the legacy corner of Pollard and 

West Spring Pines.  Mr. Johnson noted that this land will be incorporated into 

the right of way instead of being listed as a separate parcel when the deed is 

recorded. 

 

c. Williams Property: Mayor Haygood mentioned that the City is still working 

through some title issues before this sale is final.  The Mayor also noted that he 

has encouraged City apply for grant funding to assist in the cleanup of this 

property.   

 

d. Landscaping for Interstate Exits: Mr. Johnson stated that they were 

currently seeking inspiration.  The Mayor has been working with Beautification 

Committee on this.  The exits for the City need to be consistent in style and 

attractiveness. 

 

e. Transit Shelters: Mayor Haygood updated the committee on information 

coming from the MPO, stating that there is the possibility that the City may be 

able to acquire federal funds to build temporary transit shelters near the Civic 

Center and Jubilee Square for BRATS.   

Mr. Fry moved to adjourn, and was seconded by Mr. Rudicell.  The motion carried unanimously.  

The Meeting was adjourned at 6:02 pm. 

 

55



Ordinance  Committee                                      August 14, 2013 Page 1 
 

Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, August 14, 2013 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                               

                                                                                  

  

Councilman Randy Fry, Chairman       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 

 Chairman Rudicell called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Randy Fry; Pat Rudicell; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune.                                               

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Vickie Hinman; Sherree Hilburn; 

Ashley Campbell;  Scott Hetrick, Attorney, Kyle Navarro, Attorney; Jim Scroggins, City 

Prosecutor. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES  / July 10, 2013 

 

Motion by Councilman Scott to approve the July 10, 2013 minutes.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke.  

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW  

a.)  Revisions to Employee Handbook 

Scott Hetrick summarized changes to the Employee Handbook chapters 1,, 7, 8, 9, 11.  

Changes are to bring the handbook up-to-date with current Federal guidelines and to 

make the handbook flow better for easier understanding. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to send the ordinances to council with a favorable 

recommendation.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

Motion Carried Unanimously. 

 

b.)  Land Disturbance Ordinance 

Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager, gave a summary of the ordinance 

saying it is updating the 2007 ordinance with eight (8) definitions and updating the permit 

56



Ordinance  Committee                                      August 14, 2013 Page 2 
 

section.  The ordinance aids with the city’s MS-4.  She also moved sections around to 

make the ordinance flow better. 

 

Councilman Scott asked that she send a redline version showing the changes to 

committee members and to Kyle for review, and to bring it back to the committee next 

month. 

 

c.)   Illicit Discharge Ordinance 

Ashley presented the new ordinance to the committee explaining that the ordinance will 

give her authority to correct illicit discharges and to facilitate the correction of the 

problem.  It also has language to give her the authority to inspect industry. 

 

The committee asked Ashley to send this ordinance to Kyle also for review, and bring it 

back to the committee next month. 

 

d.)   Business License Consolidation 

Kyle mentioned that this is a consolidation of six (6) amendments. 

 

The committee asked Kyle to reference Adult Entertainment and Tattoo parlors in the 

ordinance, and to converse with the new Revenue Officer regarding the ordinance. The 

ordinance will be on next month’s agenda. 

 

V.  SCHEDULE OF FINES  

Kyle mentioned that he had updated the ordinance with the updated fines, and has sent it 

to Judge Hoyt for review.  He add that he put a clause in that the fines would be whatever 

the state fines when updated so they would not have to keep amending the ordinance. 

 

After discussion with Mr. Scroggins Kyle will review the ordinance, and send to Mr. 

Scroggins and Judge Hoyt for review and bring it back to next month’s meeting. 

 

The committee discussed if the city could set some court cost or if they have to go with 

what the code states.  Kyle will check on this and report back. 

 

The committee discussed a community contribution ordinance, and asked the City Clerk 

to send Councilman’s Scotts draft to Councilwoman Conaway to include discussing it at 

the August 28
th

 Special Finance Committee meeting to discuss the FY 2014 budget. 

  

 

VII.     OTHER BUSINESS 

Mr. Jim Scroggins, the City Prosecutor, discussed the Animal Control Ordinance with the 

committee pointing out some changes that should be made to the ordinance. 

a.  Section V(b) Owner Liability should be omitted / city does not have jurisdiction 

b. Section XIV(A) Omit “however, competent evidence that said failure was 

occasioned by an unforeseeable and independent act of a third person shall shift 

the burden on the City to prove otherwise.” 

c. Section XIV(B) Omit it is unnecessary since it is illegal for a dog to be out on its 

own. 

d. Section XXIII(A) Amend definition of a vicious animal. 

57



Ordinance  Committee                                      August 14, 2013 Page 3 
 

e.  Section XXIII(B) Registration of Dogs should be moved to another section since 

it does not have anything to do with vicious animals.  Move to Section IV. 

f.  Section XXIII(D) Investigation of vicious animal does not designate if it is a 

complaint or MOT.  It seems this ordinance is telling the circuit court what to do 

and what evidence to admit. Need to find out what the city thinks of the procedure 

1. An administrative hearing  2.  MOT 

g. Section XXIII(E) Notice Court Hearing and Appeal – Need to check language 

very carefully to make sure of intent.  Need to check to see if the city can conduct 

administrative hearings. 

 

The committee agreed the ordinance should be pulled from Monday’s agenda due to all 

the changes to the ordinance. The revised ordinance will be sent to Mr. Scroggins and 

Judge Hoyt for review and come back to the committee next month. 

 

 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be September 11

th
.  

 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Council Rudicell. 

 

Motion Carried Unanimously. 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m.  

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, Recording Secretary 

 

 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 

 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

84



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
26505 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
July 10, 2013 

 
 

Members Present:   Rick Cleveland, Matt Cunningham, Frank Pierce and Kit Smith 
 
Members Absent:   Jan Mittemeyer and Lisa O’Hara 
 
Advisory Staff:   Councilman Robin LeJeune, Glenn Vickery and David McKelroy, Parks & Recreation 
Director       Councilman Pat Rudicell 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:40pm. 
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by Matt Cunningham and seconded by Rick Cleveland to approve the May 15, 2013 
minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Public Participation 
None 
 
Program Reports 
Information was provided regarding programs.  Fall sports registration begins July 13. 
 
Old / New Business 
 

1.  Lott Park  The board was informed that Dixie Youth Baseball would like to 
consider removing the grass infields at Lott and replacing them with dirt infields.  No formal 
request or decision has been made by Daphne Dixie Youth Baseball to do so. 
 

2. Budget  FY2014 proposed budget information was presented to the board. 
 

3. Members  Board was informed of the resignation of Doug Dugat as of May 20. The 
board also discussed the attendance of member Jan Mittemeyer.  By-laws of the Daphne 
Recreation Board state that “the third consecutive absence from the meetings of the Board 
shall constitute a member’s resignation from the board.”  Mr. Mittemeyer has not 
responded to e-mail.  The board recommends the termination of Mr. Mittemeyer’s 
appointment due to failure to comply with attendance requirements as stated in the by-
laws. 
 

4. Tennis Court The board was informed by Councilman LeJeune about the progress 
with the tennis courts at the new Sports Complex. 

 

 
 

85



 
Comments from Director 
Director informed the board that all head coaches are required to take a concussion awareness 
program. 
 
Comments from Advisors 
Coach Vickery talked about the importance of the summer clinics at the high school. 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:41pm.  

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



JJoollii  JJ..  JJoonneess  
115 Avon Cr. E            334-208-1560 
Daphne, AL  36526       jolijjones@yahoo.com 

OOnnlliinnee  EExxppeerriieennccee  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

EEmmppllooyymmeenntt  
2013 – Present  Director of Continuing and Distance Education 

     Faulkner State Community College, Bay Minette, AL 

2002 – 2013       English Instructor, Full-Time and Adjunct                                                                             

Lurleen B. Wallace Community College, Andalusia/Opp, AL 
  

EEdduuccaattiioonn  
 M.Ed. Education,  Troy State University at Dothan, 2004. 

 B.A. English/Business Administration, Huntingdon College, 1998. 

 A.A., LBW Junior College, 1996. 

  

CCoommppuutteerr  PPrrooffiicciieenncciieess  
 Microsoft Office, including Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Outlook, and Access. 

 Respondus/StudyMate, test generating software. 

 Tegrity, a course capture tool. 

 Blackboard/WebCT, a course management software. 

 Interact daily with students in the online environment through email, Who’s 

Online, discussions, Chat rooms, and via blogs, for five years. 

 Designed and upkeep five online English/Humanities courses from the 

ground up without the use of web e-packs.  

 Facilitate learning in the online environment by teaching two to four 

courses a semester which have an online component. 

 Developed three student surveys in Respondus to gage course successes 

and failures. 

 Annually redesign personal courses based on feedback from student 

surveys. 

 Consistently receive high scores of student satisfaction with course design 

and instruction. 

 Efficiently organize time to answer student emails and calls in a timely basis. 

 Coordinate all recreational and training for business and industry. 

 Recruit and select instructors for continuing education offerings. 

 Serve on boards and attend meetings within Baldwin County. 

 Collaborate with colleagues to develop standards for online courses and 

select course management tools. 

 Annually participate in the approval of online courses through my 

involvement in the Distance Education Advisory Committee. 

 Provide orientation to Blackboard for students. 

 Record video sessions for faculty training in the use of Blackboard. 

 Conduct on-site training for faculty and staff. 

TTEEAACCHHIINNGG  

AADDMMIINNIISSTTRRAATTIIVVEE  

104



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

105



106



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

107



 

1 
ORDINANCE 2013-43                    AMENDING EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK / FIREARMS 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-43 

 

_________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT A PRIVATELY-OWNED FIREARMS & AMMUNITION 

IN THE WORKPLACE POLICY IN CHAPTER 1 OF THE 

CITY’S EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

_________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration, believes 

that it is necessary to adopt a new policy in Chapter 1 of the City of Daphne Employee 

Handbook to comply with Alabama's Guns in the Parking Lot Act which takes effect on August 

1, 2013, in order to benefit the health, safety, and welfare of its employees as well as permit 

employees to enjoy the rights protected by the new state law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: ADOPTION OF NEW POLICY: 

 

 That the following new policy be made part of Chapter 1 of the City of Daphne 

Employee Handbook: 

 

The following definitions shall be added to Section 1.7 of the Employee Handbook: 

 

Firearm - As defined in Alabama Code §13A-8-1(4), and in 18 U.S.C. §§926B(e), as those 

statutes currently exist or are later amended. 

 

Ammunition – Any propellant used in firearms or ammunition including but not limited to  

bullets, fixed cartridge ammunition, shotgun shells, individual components of fixed cartridge 

ammunition, or projectiles for muzzle-loading firearms  

 

Pistol - A firearm with a barrel of less than 12 inches in length. 

  

Long Gun - A firearm with a barrel of 12 or more inches in length (e.g., a shotgun or rifle). 

 

Qualified Police Officer - A police officer employed by the City who is in compliance with 

the Police Department’s “Firearms Policy” (SOP 4.11), as such policy currently exists or is 

later amended, and who meets the definition of “qualified law enforcement officer” as 

defined by 18 U.S.C. §§926B(c), as such statute currently exists or is later amended. 

 

1.2.6 Privately-Owned Firearms & Ammunition in the Workplace 

1 Carrying of a Firearm On Duty. Except for qualified police officers, the City prohibits all 

employees, including those with a concealed weapons permit or hunting license, from carrying 

privately-owned firearms or ammunition while on duty on the City’s facilities, while on duty in 

108



 

2 
ORDINANCE 2013-43                    AMENDING EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK / FIREARMS 

City-owned vehicles, while in any part of City facilities not open to the general public, or while 

engaged in work duties on or off City property.  Qualified police officers may carry privately-

owned firearms in these areas and at these times as authorized by the Police Department 

“Firearms Policy” (SOP 4.11) as such policy currently exists or is later amended, and as 

authorized by  18 U.S.C. §§926B, as such statute currently exists or is later amended. 

 

This policy does not alter or limit the rights and responsibilities of an employee as a citizen to 

transport or store lawfully-possessed firearms or ammunition on City property while the 

employee is off duty and not engaged in work activities.  The same regulations applicable to all 

citizens coming onto City property with firearms and ammunition apply to employees who are 

off duty and not engaged in work activities.  

 

 

2 Transportation of Firearms & Ammunition upon City Employee Parking Lots. While an 

employee is at work or engaged in work duties, the City does not restrict the transportation or 

storage of a lawfully possessed, privately-owned firearm or ammunition in an employee’s 

privately-owned motor vehicle while the vehicle is parked or operated in a City parking area or 

where the vehicle is otherwise permitted to be upon City property subject to the following: 

 

(i)  The ownership, possession, or use of the firearm or ammunition must not otherwise 

be prohibited by state or federal law. 

(ii)  An employee previously convicted of a crime of violence, has documented prior 

workplace incidents involving the threat of physical injury or which resulted in 

physical injury, or is subject to a domestic violence court order may not transport, 

store, or possess a prohibited firearm on City property. 

(iii)  An employee possessing a valid concealed weapons permit or an employee who is a 

qualified police officer may store or keep a lawfully possessed, privately-owned 

pistol or a long gun and/or ammunition in his or her locked personal vehicle. 

(iv)   An employee possessing a valid Alabama hunting license, the employee may, during 

hunting season, store or keep a lawfully possessed, privately-owned unloaded long 

gun (not a pistol) which is legal for hunting and/or ammunition in his or her locked 

personal vehicle. To reduce the likelihood of theft and to prevent the display or 

viewing of the firearm or ammunition as be construed as a threat or intimidation, 

employees must take the following precautions.  If a vehicle is attended by the 

employee, the firearm or ammunition must be kept from ordinary observation within 

the vehicle as well as to those outside the vehicle.  For an unattended vehicle, the 

firearm or ammunition must be kept from ordinary observation and locked within the 

interior of the vehicle (or otherwise secured in locked compartment/container which 

is located in the interior of the vehicle or is permanently affixed to the vehicle). 

 

 

3 Firearm & Ammunition Policy Inspection & Discipline. If the City believes any 

employee presents a risk of harm to himself or others, the City may ask the employee whether he 

has a firearm or ammunition in his vehicle or otherwise upon City property. If the employee’s 

response indicates the possibility that firearms or ammunition is present on City property, the 

City may take further action to ensure the employee is in compliance with the above provisions. 

109



 

3 
ORDINANCE 2013-43                    AMENDING EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK / FIREARMS 

  

If the employee is not in compliance, the City at its discretion may discipline the employee up to 

an including separation from employment. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER 

That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason 

held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 

deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law, or August 1, 2013, 

whichever date is later in time. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ____  DAY OF _____, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

DANE HAYGOOD 

MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES 

CITY CLERK 

 

110



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-45 

 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE KEEPING OF DOGS, CATS, DOMESTICATED 

ANIMALS, LIVESTOCK OR FOWL WITHIN THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA  

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that consolidating  the 

existing animal control ordinances which are currently in effect is necessary to effectuate and 

implement more efficient means of  animal control within the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that this ordinance 

consolidating all existing animal control ordinances is in the interest of the public health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I. OFFICE OF ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER CREATED 

 

A. There is hereby recognized within the City of Daphne (the “City”), the previously 

established position of Animal Control Officer.  The Animal Control Officer shall be under 

the supervision, direction and control of the City of Daphne Police Department.  The Animal 

Control Officer shall be supervisor over the City of Daphne Animal Shelter and over all 

employees assigned to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter.  All enforcement officers assigned 

to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter shall hereafter be known as Animal Control Officers. 

 

B. It shall be unlawful for any person to knowingly or willingly oppose or resist any 

Animal Control Officer in executing or attempting to execute any lawful process or in the 

discharge of any regular duty, or in any way to interfere with, hinder or prevent any such 

officer from discharging his duty. 

 

SECTION II.  DEFINITIONS 

 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning 

respectively ascribed to them by this section unless taken specific exception to elsewhere in 

this ordinance. 

 

Animal. The term shall mean any nonhuman, animate being which is 

endowed with the power of voluntary motion to include, but not limited to: 

Mammals, i.e. dogs, cats, horses, hogs, cows, sheep, goats, rabbits, etc.; 

reptiles; birds; salamanders; toads; frogs; sharks; snakes; rays; bony fishes; 

and amphibians. 

 

Animal shelter. The place designated or used as such by the City for the 

maintenance and operation of a pound. 

 

111



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 2 

 

Animal Control Officers. All enforcement officers assigned to the City of 

Daphne Animal Shelter. 

 

At large. Any animal which is off the property of its owner or person in 

charge and not carried by said person, kept in an effective closure or under 

control or restraint by such person by means of a leash in such a way as to 

prevent its free movement, and so as to prevent said animal from freely 

charging or attacking persons or animals. 

 

Bitten. Seized with teeth or jaws such that the skin of the person or thing 

seized has been nipped or gripped or has been wounded or pierced and there 

has been probable contact of saliva with the break or abrasion of the skin. 

 

Caged. Confinement in a container, which may include a vehicle but not its 

trunk, in such a way that the free movement of such animal is restrained and 

so as to prevent the animal caged from biting or attacking a person or animal. 

 

Cat. All members of the domestic feline family. 

 

City of Daphne Animal Shelter. The location designated or used as such by 

the City for a place of confinement of animals held pursuant to the authority 

of this Ordinance. 

 

Corral. Any uncovered, enclosed parcel of land where large animals are kept. 

 

Dog. All members of the domestic canine family. 

 

Dogs Presumed to be vicious.  Any dog which is known by the owner or 

person in charge to habitually chase moving vehicles or charge persons on the 

public streets and other public ways shall be presumed to be vicious, whether 

or not such dog has actually bitten or attacked a person or other animal. 

 

Domesticated Animal. Shall mean, but is not limited to rabbits, squirrels, 

raccoons, pot-bellied pigs or any other animal used as a pet. 

 

Fowl. Chicken, turkey, ducks, geese, guineas or other domestic fowl. 

 

Livestock. Horses, mules, donkeys, oxen, sheep, goats, cows, buffaloes and 

swine, or any one of them. 

 

Owner. means any person, firm, corporation, organization, or department 

having a right of property in the animal, or who keeps or harbors the animal, 

or who has it in his care, or acts as its custodian, or who permits the animal to 

remain on or about any premises occupied by him or her. 

112



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 3 

 

 

Person in Charge.  Any person who feeds a dog or cat not owned by him or 

her or who otherwise cares for the animal.  This definition shall not include 

individuals who perform humane acts for the health and safety of an animal 

on a one time or temporary basis. 

 

Vicious and dangerous animal.  

 

(1) Any dog with a known propensity, tendency or disposition to attack 

unprovoked, to cause injury to, or otherwise threaten the safety of 

human beings or domestic animals. 

 

(2) Any dog which because of its size, physical nature or vicious 

propensity is capable of inflicting serious physical harm or death to 

humans and which constitutes a danger to human life or property if it 

were not kept in the manner required by this chapter. 

 

(3) Any dog which, without provocation, attacks or bites or has attacked 

or bitten a human being or domestic animal.  

 

(4) Any dog owned or harbored primarily or in part for the purpose of 

dog fighting, or any dog trained for dog fighting.  

 

The terms “potentially dangerous” and “vicious” shall not apply to dogs used 

by law enforcement officials for legitimate law enforcement purposes, nor 

dogs used as certified guide dogs for the blind, hearing dogs for the deaf nor 

aid dogs for the handicapped nor shall it apply to licensed kennels, humane 

society shelters, animal control facilities, or veterinarians. 

 

SECTION III. LIVESTOCK & FOWL. 

 

A. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1.  General Prohibition 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person to keep any livestock or fowl within the 

city limits of the City.   

 

2.  Exceptions 

 

a) All livestock or fowl within the city limits of the City, prior to 

adoption of Ordinance No. 2003-11, are hereby grand fathered.  Animal 

Control Officers shall have made full inventory of all livestock and fowl 

currently maintained within the city limits at the time of adoption of 

113



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 4 

 

Ordinance No. 2003-11.  It shall be unlawful to replace any livestock or fowl 

that is sold, traded, given away, lost, deceased or otherwise disposed of.  All 

livestock or fowl located upon any real property within the City at the time of 

adoption of Ordinance No. 2003-11 shall be removed therefrom upon the sell, 

lease, rent, conveyance or gift of said real property or upon the death of the 

owner of said livestock or fowl.  

 

b) This section shall not apply to those whose property is annexed in the 

future should those property owners maintain livestock or fowl upon the 

property prior to annexation.  

 

3.  Condition of Premises  

 

If the premises, exempted from this section as described in Section III, A (2), 

 where livestock or fowl are kept shall not be free from unsanitary droppings, 

refuse and odors, or shall be in such condition as to breed flies, the Animal 

Control Office shall notify the owner or person-in-charge of the animals or 

fowl to remove such matter or cure such condition within a reasonable time 

to be fixed by the Animal Control Officer and, if such objectionable 

conditions are not cured within such time as is specified, the Animal Control 

Officer shall issue a citation to the owner or person-in-charge. 

 

B. LIVESTOCK OR FOWL AT LARGE 

 

It shall be unlawful for any owner or person-in-charge to knowingly, voluntarily or 

willfully permit any livestock or fowl to be at large within the City. 

 

C. HORSE STABLE PERMIT 

 

1.  Any person, firm or corporation desiring to open, operate or be in charge of a 

horse stable within the City must obtain a yearly permit therefor.  The 

application for permit shall be maintained by the Animal Control Officer and 

will indicate the number and type of horses, the name, address and phone 

number of the owner or person-in-charge of each and the veterinarian contact 

number.  The cost of a stable permit will be one hundred fifty dollars 

($150.00) for a new permit and one hundred dollars ($100.00) for yearly 

renewal.   

 

2.  A consent petition must be signed by all neighbors within five hundred (500) 

feet of the exterior parameter of the real property line where the stable is 

located. The petition and application will then be forwarded to the Planning 

Commission along with plans reflecting, at a minimum, the boundaries of the 

proposed pasture area and the proposed stable area with square footage per 

animal indicated thereon.   

114



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 5 

 

 

 Commission will then make a recommendation to the City Council.  If 

approved and the stable becomes operational, Animal Control Officers will 

conduct an inspection of the facility to determine whether the condition of the 

premises is in compliance with Section I, A (3).  A stable exists where two or 

more horses are kept. 

 

3. This section does not apply to stables existing within the City prior to the 

adoption of Ordinance No. 2003-11 or to newly annexed properties where 

stables existed and were operated immediately prior to annexation.  

 

SECTION IV. LICENSE REQUIRED 

 

A.  DOGS AND CATS 

 

The owner or person-in-charge of every dog or cat in the City which is more than 

three (3) months of age shall annually register the same as to sex, breed, description, 

name and address of the owner or person-in-charge, and name of the dog or cat, if 

any.  At the time of said registration, such owner or person-in-charge shall obtain a 

license for said dog or cat and shall pay a license fee as follows: 

 

Unspayed or unneutered male or female: . . . . . . . . . $5.00 

Spayed or neutered male or female: . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3.00 

 

B.  LICENSE TAG ATTACHED 

 

The license tag issue at the time of registration shall be attached to the collar and 

worn by the dog or cat at all times within the City.  It shall be unlawful for any owner 

or person-in-charge of any dog or cat not to keep attached to said dog or cat the tag 

evidencing registration with the City as provided in this section. 

 

SECTION V.  DOG, CAT OR DOMESTICATED ANIMAL AT LARGE 

 

A. GENERAL PROHIBITION 

 

No owner or person in charge of a dog, cat or domesticated animal shall permit the 

dog, cat or domesticated animal to be at large at any time within the City.  

 

B.  OWNER LIABILITY 

 

If the owner of any dog, cat or domesticated animal carelessly manages said dog, cat 

or domesticated animal or  permits said animal to be at large, and another person, 

without fault suffers damage thereby, such owner shall be liable for damages. 

 

115



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION VI.  SEIZURE OF DOGS, CATS OR DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

AT LARGE 

 

A.  POLICE OFFICER’S DUTY TO NOTIFY ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER OF 

DOGS OR CATS AT LARGE; PROCEDURE FOR SEIZURE OF DOGS OR CATS 

AT LARGE 

 

It shall be the duty of every police officer in the City, upon discovering a dog, cat or 

domesticated animal at large within the City, to promptly notify the Animal Control 

Officer.  It shall be the duty of the Animal Control Officer when so notified, or 

whenever the Animal Control Officer observes any dog, cat or domesticated animal 

at large, to immediately seize the dog, cat or domesticated animal and confine the 

animal to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter and if said dog or cat is licensed by the 

City, to make a reasonable effort to notify the owner.  Any dog, cat or domesticated 

animal found unlawfully to be at large within the City is hereby declared a nuisance 

and shall be seized and confined by the Animal Control Officer, and cared for in a 

humane manner for a period of not less than ten (10) days. 

 

B. RETURN OF DOGS, CATS OR DOMESTICATED ANIMALS TO OWNER 

PERMITTED 

 

In addition to, or in lieu of, confining a dog, cat or domesticated animal found 

unlawfully at large when the owner or person-in-charge of said dog, cat or 

domesticated animal is known to the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control 

Officer may return the dog, cat or domesticated animal to the owner or person in 

charge and issue a citation for violation of this Ordinance. 

 

C.  NOTICE TO OWNER OF CONFINEMENT OF DOGS, CATS OR 

DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

 

Immediately upon confinement of a dog, cat or domesticated animal, the Animal 

Control Officer shall make reasonable effort to ascertain the identity of and notify the 

owner or person-in-charge of such dog, cats or domesticated animal of their 

confinement and of the conditions under which they may regain possession of such 

animal. 

 

SECTION VII. NOISY ANIMALS 

 

A.  RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD PROHIBITION AGAINST KEEPING OF 

NOISY ANIMALS 

116



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 7 

 

 

It shall be unlawful and a nuisance for any person to keep on a residential lot or 

premises any animal or group of animals known to said person to habitually, 

continuously or intermittently to make or emit sounds or noises of such volume and 

nature as unreasonably to interfere with or disturb the peace, quiet, comfort and 

repose of persons of ordinary sensibilities within the neighborhood in the reasonable 

use and enjoyment of adjacent property. 

 

B.  OTHER AREAS PROHIBITION AGAINST KEEPING OF NOISY ANIMALS 

 

It shall be unlawful and a nuisance for any person to keep, on any tract, lot or 

premises within the City, any animal or group of animals under such circumstances 

that the sounds or noises emitted by said animals are of such volume and nature as 

unreasonably to interfere with or disturb the peace, quiet, comfort and repose of 

persons of ordinary sensibilities in the reasonable use and enjoyment of any adjacent 

property used for residential purposes.  

 

C.  ABATEMENT OF NOISE; ENFORCEMENT 

 

1. Any owner or person-in-charge violating this section shall be guilty of 

maintaining a nuisance.  However, that no prosecution shall be commenced 

and no arrest made pursuant to this section, except upon affidavit made 

before, and warrant issued by a Magistrate.   

 

2. Any Police Officer or Animal Control Officer may take steps immediately to 

cure the situation to cause the noise to be abated, either through issuance of a 

citation, or impounding the animal if the owner, agent or person-in-charge 

cannot be found at the time of the disturbance. 

 

SECTION VIII.  RIGHT OF ENTRY ONTO LAND 

 

The Animal Control Officer shall have the right and duty and to enter upon any 

property, except inside a private dwelling house, for the purpose of capturing any 

dog, cat or domesticated animal at large, in compliance with the provisions of this 

Ordinance. 

 

SECTION IX. PROCEDURE FOR REDEMPTION 

 

The owner of any impounded dog, cat or domesticated animal may, within seven (7) 

days after the dog, cat or domesticated animal is impounded, redeem the dog or cat or 

domesticated animal by paying to the City the sum of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for 

impounding and four dollars ($4.00) per day for the care of said dog, cat or 

domesticated animal; but if said dog or cat is not currently licensed by the City, the 

owner must also secure a City license after exhibiting evidence that the dog or cat has 

117



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 8 

 

been inoculated against rabies. 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION X.   DISPOSITION OF UNREDEEMED DOGS, CATS OR 

DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

 

A.  ADOPTION OR HUMANE DESTRUCTION 

 

In the event any impounded dog, cat or domesticated animal is not redeemed within 

ten (10) days after the same is impounded and the dog, cat or domesticated animal 

does not bear a current City license, or if after ten (10) days from the time  notice has 

been made to the owner of dog, cat or domesticated animal which has been picked up 

but bears a current City license, the Animal Control Officer may, at such Officer’s 

discretion, place said dog, cat or domesticated animal in a home or turn the dog, cat 

or domesticated animal over to the Daphne Animal Shelter  for adoption, or the 

Animal Control Officer, at such officer’s discretion, may destroy said dog, cat or 

domesticated animal by lethal injection prior to the expiration of the ten (10) days if 

the animal is injured or ill. 

 

B.  HUMANE DESTRUCTION OF NUISANCE ANIMALS 

 

After a dog, cat or domesticated animal has been confined for the period of time as 

otherwise provided in this Ordinance and if the owner or person in charge entitled to 

possession fails to make application for release of such dog, cat or domesticated 

animal as herein provided, or fails to pay the fine(s) as provided in this Ordinance or 

fails to pay the proper inoculation for rabies, or if such satisfactory evidence as 

required by Ordinance is not provided, then such dog, cat or domesticated animal is 

hereby declared a nuisance and a danger to the health, safety and welfare of the City; 

and the authorized Animal Control Officer shall cause such dog, cat or domesticated 

animal to be humanely destroyed as herein provided; however, any dog, cat or 

domesticated animal under two (2) weeks old or whose eyes have not opened since 

birth may be humanely disposed of upon being impounded where it has been found in 

violation of this Ordinance. 

 

C.  AUTHORITY TO USE FIREARM 

 

Any Animal Control Officer may be authorized by the Chief of Police to carry a 

firearm for the purpose of assisting in impounding any dog, cat or domesticated 

animal shall have the authority to shoot and kill such dog, cat or domesticated animal 

if, in attempting to capture the same or in otherwise keeping the same, it shall 

become an immediate hazard to the safety of the person or to the safety of persons or 

118



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 9 

 

animals in the immediate vicinity. 

 

D.  HUMANE DESTRUCTION OF DISEASED ANIMALS - ACTS OF MERCY 

 

Any confined dog, cat or domesticated animal that is injured or diseased, shall, as an 

act of mercy, be humanely destroyed immediately after inspection by a veterinarian, 

or by the Animal Control Officer if it is determined that such destruction is necessary 

to prevent unnecessary suffering, to prevent the spread of disease or because the 

animal is incurable.   A written agreement to this effect shall be signed by those 

inspecting the animal and such agreement shall be retained by Animal Control for a 

period of one (1) year. 

 

E.  MANNER OF DISPOSAL 

 

The Animal Control Officer, when required to dispose of dogs, cats or domesticated 

animals, shall do so by such process as is recognized by veterinary science as being a 

humane manner in which to destroy dogs, cats and domesticated animals. 

 

F.  DISPOSAL OF NON-DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

 

Non-domesticated animals may be destroyed by the Animal control Officer or by 

their direction, for public safety to prevent the spread of disease and acts of mercy.  

Such authority shall come from the Chief of Police for animal control personnel to 

carry out the provisions of this order. 

 

G.  REQUIRED STERILIZATION 

 

Any person who adopts a sexually mature dog or cat, at least 180 days in age, is 

required by state law to have the animal properly sterilized. Therefore, for all animals 

adopted through the Daphne Animal Shelter, the following fees will be collected by 

the Daphne Animal Shelter prior to the adoption of any dog or cat that is not 

sterilized and which is not privately owned: 

 

For an unsterilized dog: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $85.00 

For an unsterilized cat: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$55.00 

 

These fees will be deposited with the Baldwin Animal Rescue Center which has 

agreed to be responsible for the voluntary transport of the required documentation, 

the payment, and the animal to a licensed veterinarian, the name and location of 

which shall be given to the adopting party for the retrieval of the animal after 

sterilization.  The adopting party may, at their election, transport the animal to a 

specified veterinarian, but in any case, the payment and documentation will be 

delivered to that veterinarian by the Baldwin Animal Rescue Center.  Follow-up will 

be conducted by the Baldwin Animal Rescue Center to determine that the adopting 

119



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 10 

 

party has complied with the sterilization law.  Should it be determined that an 

adopting party has not complied with the law, which is a misdemeanor offense, 

referral will then be made by the Baldwin Animal Rescue Center to the proper 

authorities for enforcement. 

 

This section does not apply to private persons who have evidence of ownership of an 

animal taken into custody of the Daphne Animal Shelter. 

 

SECTION XI.   RABIES VACCINATION REQUIRED - PENALTY 

 

A.  RABIES VACCINATION REQUIRED 

 

It shall be unlawful for any owner or person in charge of any premises where dog or 

cat is kept to keep any dog or cat more than three (3) months of age, thereon, which 

has not been vaccinated against rabies within the preceding twelve (12) months. 

 

B.  PENALTY 

 

Any owner or person in charge in violation hereof shall be subject to a penalty not to 

exceed an amount equal to twice the State approved charge for inoculation, to be 

imposed by the Animal Control officer or his authorized representative, in addition to 

the fee prescribed for the inoculation. 

 

C.  LICENSED VETERINARIAN 

 

In order to be sufficient under this Ordinance, the vaccination of any dog or cat shall 

be accomplished by a licensed veterinarian. 

 

D.  TAG ATTACHMENT MANDATORY 

 

The serially numbered rabies tag issued at the time of inoculation shall at all times be 

attached to a collar or harness worn by the dog or cat for which the tag is issued.  It 

shall be unlawful for any owner or person in charge of any dog or cat not to keep 

attached to said dog or cat the tag evidencing the anti-rabies vaccine or inoculation as 

provided in this Ordinance.  However, said tag need not be attached during 

supervised obedience training classes or animal shows. 

 

E.   ANIMAL BITE 

 

1. Whenever the Daphne Police Department or an Animal Control Officer 

receives information that any person has been bitten by an animal required to 

be inoculated against rabies, the animal will be placed in quarantine with a 

duly licensed veterinarian for observation of rabies for ten (10) consecutive 

days.  The owner or person-in-charge shall be responsible for ensuring the 

120



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 11 

 

quarantine is carried out immediately and at the owner or person-in-charge’s 

expense. A police report will be completed documenting the incident and 

confirmation of quarantine.  It shall be unlawful for any person having 

knowledge that any person has been bitten by any such animal to refuse to 

notify promptly the Daphne Police Department or an Animal Control Officer. 

 

2. It shall be unlawful for an owner or person-in-charge to refuse or fail to 

quarantine an animal. 

 

3. Where biting occurs by a stray animal, the Animal Control Officer may 

humanely destroy the animal immediately after the bite and submit the 

Animal's head to the state health laboratory for rabies examination. 

 

4. K-9 animals used by law enforcement shall be exempted from the quarantine 

period where such bite occurs in the line of duty and evidence of proper 

vaccination against rabies, but shall be examined at the end of ten (10) days 

by a duly licensed veterinarian. 

 

SECTION XII.   VACCINATION PERIOD 

 

The vaccination of any dog or cat against rabies shall be valid for a period of one (1) year. 

 

SECTION XIII.   CONFINEMENT OF DOGS OR CATS IN HEAT 

 

A. Every female dog or cat in heat shall be kept confined by the owner or person-in-

charge.  At any time a female dog or cat in heat is found to be causing a disturbance 

of any dog or cat on adjoining premises, it shall be the duty of the owner or person-

in-charge of said dog or cat to immediately confine said dog or cat in a manner so as 

to avoid such disturbance. 

 

SECTION XIV.  DUTY TO RESTRAIN 

 

A.  DOGS, CATS OR DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

 

It shall be the duty of every owner or person in charge of any dog, cat or domesticated 

animal to keep said animal under effective restraint, while the same is within the 

limits of the City, whether or not said dog or cat is upon or away from his or her 

premises.  It shall be unlawful for the owner or person in charge of any dog or cat to 

fail to keep said animal under effective restraint.  Proof that a dog, cat or 

domesticated animal was not properly restrained, whether on or off the premises of 

the owner or person in charge, shall be prima facie evidence of a violation.  Negligent 

failure to provide or maintain effective restraint shall not be a defense; however, 

competent evidence that said failure was occasioned by an unforeseeable and 

independent act of a third person shall shift the burden on the City to prove 

121



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 12 

 

otherwise. 

 

B.  DOGS, CATS AND DOMESTICATED ANIMALS / DESTRUCTION-DAMAGE 

TO PROPERTY 

 

It shall be unlawful for the owner or person-in-charge of any dog, cat or domesticated 

animal within the City known to said person to habitually cause destruction or 

damage to the property of another to allow said dog, cat or domestic animal to run at 

large.  

 

C.  DEFECATION ON ANOTHER’S PROPERTY 

 

No owner or person-in-charge of any dog, cat or domesticated animal shall permit 

such animal to defecate on another person’s property.  Such owner or person-in-

charge shall, while walking such animal, utilize a restraint device to prevent the 

animal from defecating on other person’s property.  It shall be the duty of the owner 

or person-in-charge to remove and dispose of any feces deposited by said animal 

upon the grounds of any public park or public place, upon any residential lot of 

another occupied for human habitation, or upon any right-of-way adjacent thereto.  

Such removal and disposal shall be done on demand by the owner or occupant of 

such property or by the Animal Control Officer. 

 

D.  CONDITION OF PREMISES 

 

1. The premises where any dog, cat or domesticated animal is kept shall be free 

from unsanitary droppings, refuse and odors, or in a condition to breed flies 

or infestation of fleas.  Unsanitary or inhumane living conditions for these 

animals will not be allowed.  The Animal Control Officer shall notify the 

owner or person-in-charge of the premises to remove such matter or cure 

such condition within a reasonable time, to be fixed by the Animal Control 

Officer.  If such condition is not remedied within the time so fixed, the 

Animal Control Officer shall issue a citation to the owner or person-in-

charge.  Animals found in cruel, abusive or neglectful situations may be 

promptly impounded if the life or health of the animal is at risk.  If no contact 

is immediately made with the owner, then a written notice shall be left 

indicating the location of the animal and the reason for impoundment.  The 

animal may remain impounded until the condition has been corrected. 

 

2. An owner or person-in-charge of any dog, cat or domesticated animal shall 

provide adequate shelter from the elements if the animal is kept outside.  

Adequate food and water shall be made available to the animal.  Dogs shall 

not be kept or maintained on a chain or tether in the City. Any dog confined 

with a fenced in yard must have adequate space for exercise based on the 

dimensions of at least 150 square feet per dog.  Such enclosure shall be 

122



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 13 

 

constructed of chain link or wooden fencing or a similar type material with all 

four sides enclosed.  The enclosure shall be of sufficient height to prevent the 

animal from escaping from such enclosure and shall meet the requirements of 

the Alabama Animal Rights Protection Act, Section 13A-11-24(1).  At no 

point in time may an animal be tied or leased to an inanimate object, i.e., tree, 

post, etc. 

 

 As an alternative, the owner may use underground invisible fencing to meet 

the requirements of this section in lieu of a chain link or wooden  fence.  The 

invisible fencing must be able to properly and humanely restrain the dog on 

the property.  A dog at large is prima facie evidence that the invisible fence 

did not properly restrain the animal.  During power outages, etc., the owner 

must take other proper measures such as bringing the animal inside to prevent 

the animal from being at large during power outages.   

 

3. No dog, cat or domesticated animal shall be restrained with a restraining 

device less than six (6) feet long unless walking or training such animal. 

 

4. No dog, cat or domesticated animal shall be placed, confined or allowed to be 

placed or confined in a motor vehicle under such conditions or for such a 

period of time as to endanger the health or welfare of the animal because of 

temperature, lack of food or water, or such other conditions as may 

reasonably be expected to cause suffering, disability or death. 

 

E.  RIGHT OF ENTRY TO INSPECT 

 

The Animal Control Officer shall have the right and it shall be the Officer’s duty to 

enter upon any property, except a private dwelling house, for the purpose of 

inspecting any living condition for an animal for which there is a reasonable 

suspicion to believe that there exists thereupon a violation of this Ordinance.  

 

SECTION XV.  STRAY DOGS, CATS OR DOMESTICATED ANIMALS MAY 

BE TAKEN UP 

 

Any person in the City finding any dog, cat or domesticated running at large about his 

premises or residence, or the residence of which he is in charge, may have such animal 

confined by the Animal Control Officer as an at large animal or stray. 

 

SECTION XVI.  HUMANE TRAPS 

 

A.  The Animal Control officer is hereby authorized, in order to apprehend animals in 

violation of this Ordinance which are otherwise difficult to apprehend, to use traps 

designed to humanely capture said animals by placing the same upon any public 

property of the City, upon the right of way of any public street or highway or upon 

123



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 14 

 

the private property of any person granting permission therefor.  

 

B.   It shall be the duty of the Animal Control Officer to check such traps daily and 

remove captured animals therefrom to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter where they 

shall be disposed or treated as otherwise provided herein. 

 

C.  It shall be unlawful for any person to molest or tamper with any such trap, or to 

remove any animal captured in any such trap or to interfere with the Animal Control 

Officer in setting or servicing any such trap. 

 

D.  Any owner or person-in-charge of any premises within the City may set their own 

humane trap on such premises for the purpose of removing any animal, except 

songbirds, which has entered onto the premises. 

 

E.  It shall be the duty of the owner or person-in-charge to check such trap daily and 

deliver any animal captured therein to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter or to the 

animal’s owner. 

 

F.  Any owner or person-in-charge of any dog, cat or domesticated animal captured in a 

humane trap which is off the premises of the owner or person-in-charge thereof shall 

be prima facie presumed to have allowed, suffered or permitted such animal to be or 

run at large.  At any time Dogs or cats are captured by use of such trap and the owner 

or person-in-charge is known or becomes known to the Animal Control Officer, such 

owner or person-in-charge shall be given a citation to appear in City Court as 

provided hereafter. 

 

SECTION XVII.  CRUELTY TO ANIMALS 

 

A.  Any person who commits any of the acts enumerated hereafter shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor: 

 

1.  any person who overrides, over-drives, overloads, drives when overloaded, 

tortures, torments, deprives of necessary sustenance, cruelly beats, mutilates, 

or cruelly kills or causes or procures to be overridden, over-driven, 

overloaded, driven when overloaded, tortured, tormented, deprived of 

necessary sustenance, cruelly beaten, mutilated, abandoned or cruelly killed; 

or  

 

2.  any person having the charge or custody of such animal, either as owner or 

otherwise, inflicts unnecessary cruelty upon same, or fails to provide the 

same with proper food, drink or protection from the weather, or cruelly drives 

or allows to be ridden or over-driven when unfit for labor; or  

 

3.  any person who, having the charge or custody of any animal known to him to 

124



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 15 

 

require medical treatment or care in order to prevent unjustifiable physical 

pain, suffering or death, who having such knowledge fails to provide proper 

treatment and care, or in the alternative to cause said animal to be humanely 

disposed of; or 

 

4.  any person who unlawfully or maliciously kills, disables, disfigures, or 

injures any animal, without good cause. 

 

B.  EXCEPTION: 

 

This section shall not be construed as prohibiting the dehorning or castration of 

cattle, sheep or goats. 

 

SECTION XVIII.  ANIMALS SUSPECTED OF HAVING RABIES DECLARED 

NUISANCES; IMPOUNDMENT OF SAME: 

 

Any animal suspected of infection with rabies is hereby declared to be a public nuisance and 

a danger to the health and safety of the community.  The Animal Control Officer may take up 

and confine any such animal. 

 

SECTION XIX.  CITATIONS 

 

When any animal is found by the Animal Control Officer to be in violation of any provision 

of this Ordinance, and the person or persons responsible become known to the Animal 

Control Officer, a citation may issue to the owner or person in charge for said violation 

directing the person to appear in Municipal Court at a time and date stated therein to answer 

to charges of violations of this Ordinance, which said charges shall be stated in said citation.  

It shall be unlawful and a misdemeanor for any person to fail to appear in City Court at the 

time and place stated in a citation issued by the Animal Control Officer. 

 

SECTION XX.  DISPOSITION OF FEES 

 

All monies collected, as provided for in this Ordinance, shall be turned over and delivered 

forthwith to the City Treasurer and all revenues generated through enforcement of any 

section of this Ordinance shall be appropriated by the City for use in supporting, maintaining 

and providing for the ongoing expense of operating the City of Daphne Animal Shelter and 

expenses and costs incurred in the enforcement of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XXI.  MINIMUM PENALTIES 

 

A.  PENALTY FOR VIOLATION - FINES: 

 

The following schedule of fines is hereby established by the City pursuant to this 

Ordinance and the laws of the State of Alabama.  In addition to the fines so 

125



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 16 

 

established, the Defendant shall pay, in addition to such fine amount, any court costs 

which are in effect at the time of such violation occurs.  If the Defendant elects to 

plead guilty before a magistrate to a violation of any of the municipal offenses 

contained herein for which there is a fine set forth in this section, the fine plus 

applicable court cost shall apply.  In lieu of appearing before a magistrate, the 

Defendant may sign a guilty plea and waiver of trial provision on the municipal 

offense citation, and deliver the amount of the fine plus applicable court costs to the 

Clerk of the Municipal Court or mail such amount to the Clerk of the Municipal 

Court for the City of Daphne at 1502 Highway 98, Daphne, Alabama 36526.  

 

B.  SCHEDULE OF FINES: 

 

Any person found guilty of the provisions of this Ordinance as referenced herein, the 

minimum fines shall apply as follows: 

INFRACTION   FINE  

 

Allowing dog to defecate   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

 another’s property   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

  

Animal restrained by leash  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

or restraining device less   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

than six (6) feet long   3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Cat at large/ destruction  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

damage to property   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

(no tag)    3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Cat at large/ destruction  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $10 

damage to property   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

(with tag)    3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Cruelty to animals   1
st
 offense      Court  

     2
nd

 offense       Court  

     3
rd

 offense        Court  

 

Dog at large (with tag)  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $10 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

126



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 17 

 

Dog at large (no tag)   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Failure to Restrain   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

 

Fowl at large    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Failure to quarantine   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period   Court 

animal that has bitten   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period   Court  

 

Failure to notify    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

authorities of bite   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court  

 

Failure to obtain rabies  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

vaccination    2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Failure to attach rabies tag  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Failure to attach tag   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

 (dog/cat)    2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

  

Failure to license   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

(dog/cat)    2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Failure to surrender    1
st
 offense      Court 

Dangerous/Vicious animal  2
nd

 offense      Court 

 

127



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 18 

 

Failure to confine dog/cat  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

in heat     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $100 

 

Keeping a dangerous and   See Section J 

Vicious animal    

 

Failure to provide adequate  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

shelter/ food and or water  2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

Interfering/ opposing   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

Animal Control Officer  2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court  

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Keeping prohibited   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

livestock in city limits   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Keeping prohibited    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

fowl in city limits   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Livestock at large   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Noisy animals    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $100 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $250 

      3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $500 & 

            Court  

 

Operating illegal horse  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

stable      2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Promoting animal fighting  1
st
 offense      Court 

     2
nd

 offense      Court 

 

Refusing to allow inspection  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

128



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 19 

 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court  

 

Tamper with animal trap/  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

removing animal from   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court  

trap/interfering with ACO  3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

in setting/servicing trap 

 

Unsanitary living condition-   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

fowl/livestock    2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Unsanitary/inhumane    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

living condition   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $100 

(any animal)    3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Dangerous and vicious animal 1
st
 offense      Court 

at large     2
nd

 offense      Court 

     3
rd

 offense      Court 

 

C.  That in addition to any offense not referred to in this section, any person so convicted 

of any other section of this Ordinance, separately and/or separately shall be fined the 

sum of not less than Fifty ($50.00) Dollars or more than Five Hundred ($500.00) 

Dollars, and/or incarceration in the Daphne Municipal Jail for a period not to exceed 

180 days or both, at the discretion of the Municipal Court Judge 

 

SECTION XXII. DONATIONS TO ANIMAL SHELTERS 

 

This section shall establish an additional procedure for donations to the City of Daphne 

Animal Shelter via online payment at the City of Daphne Animal Shelter website through 

generally accepted credit cards. 

 

SECTION XXIII. VICIOUS ANIMALS 

 

A.  HARBORING 

 

No person shall own or harbor any animal for the purpose of animal fighting, or train, 

torment, badger, bait or use any animal for the purpose of causing or encouraging 

said animal to attack human beings or domestic animals when not provoked. 

 

No person shall sell, offer for sale, breed, buy or attempt to buy any vicious animal 

within the City. 

129



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 20 

 

 

B.  REGISTRATION OF DOGS 

 

The tag and a certificate of registration or license shall be of such form and design 

and shall contain such information as the City shall prescribe and shall be issued to 

the owner or keeper upon payment of the registration fee. The registration fee for all 

neutered and spayed dogs shall be $3.00 and the registration fee for all un-neutered 

and un-spayed dogs shall be $5.00. 

 

The owner or person in charge shall at all times, keep the tag affixed to said dog or 

cat. It shall be unlawful for any owner or person in charge of an animal to fail to 

comply fully with all of the requirements of this section by failing to register a dog or 

a cat. It shall also be unlawful for any person, except the owner or person in charge 

and upon its own premises, to remove a tag from a dog or cat tagged under the 

provisions of this section or to place a tag upon a dog or cat for which said tag was 

not issued, to procure a tag from the City by fraud or misrepresentation, or to 

disfigure or alter the words or figures upon a tag. 

 

If a tag becomes lost or mutilated it shall be replaced with a tag or decal marked 

“duplicate” upon payment of the fee of $3.00. No duplicate tag or decal shall be 

issued unless the dog or cat has been inoculated for rabies within twelve (12) months 

of the date of issuance of the duplicate tag. 

 

In addition to the information listed above, if an animal is vicious or presumed to be 

vicious, as defined herein or as is determined at a hearing for such purpose, then the 

owner shall provide two identification color photographs of the animal clearly 

showing the color, any markings and approximate size of the animal. 

 

C. INSURANCE 

 

All owners or keepers of a vicious dog or dog presumed to be vicious, as previously 

defined or as shall be determined to be vicious after judicial review, shall provide 

proof of liability insurance in a single incident amount of at least $100,000.00, 

specifically covering any damage or injury which may result from the ownership, 

keeping or maintenance of such animal. 

 

The policy shall contain a provision requiring the City to be named as an additional 

insured for the sole purpose of being notified by the insurer of any cancellation, 

termination or expiration of the liability insurance policy. 

 

D. INVESTIGATION OF VICIOUS DOGS 

 

When any person claims that an animal is vicious, he or she shall make a sworn 

statement setting forth the name of the animal’s owner, the location where the animal 

130



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 21 

 

is being kept in the City, and the reason he or she believes the animal to be vicious. 

 

The sworn statement will be delivered to the Animal Control Officer who will 

complete a vicious animal investigation. 

 

Animal Control Officers are authorized to initiate a vicious animal investigation in 

cases where a bite or serious injury to any person has been reported or when the 

officer has other reason to believe a dog may be vicious. 

 

Police officers and/or animal control officers shall be permitted to enter the exterior 

property where a vicious animal or animal presumed to be vicious is located for the 

purpose of investigating the allegation of viciousness.  If the police officer and/or 

animal control officer has reason to believe an animal poses an immediate threat to 

the health, safety or welfare of the general public, the officer may seize the animal 

and impound the animal at the animal shelter pending completion of the investigation 

and hearing. 

 

If an animal control officer or a law enforcement officer has investigated and 

determined that there exists probable cause to believe that an animal is potentially 

dangerous or vicious, the animal control officer, the chief officer of the public pound 

or animal control department or his or her immediate supervisor or the head of the 

local law enforcement agency, or his or her designee, shall determine whether or not 

the animal in question should be declared potentially dangerous or vicious.  

 

Whenever possible, any complaint received from a member of the public which 

serves as the evidentiary basis for the animal control officer or law enforcement 

officer to find probable cause shall be sworn to and verified by the complainant and 

shall be attached to the petition. 

 

In the event the vicious animal investigation leads the Animal Control Officer to 

believe the allegation is unfounded, the Animal Control Officer shall advise the 

complainant of his findings and submit the results of the investigation to the 

Municipal Court and his animal control supervisor. 

 

E. NOTICE, COURT HEARING, AND APPEAL 

 

1. The owner or keeper of the animal shall be served with notice of the hearing 

and a copy of the petition, either personally or by first-class mail with return 

receipt requested. The hearing shall be held no less than ten (10) days nor 

more than twenty (20) days after such notice is mailed to the owner or keeper 

of the animal and shall be open to the public. 

 

 2. At such hearing all interested persons shall have the opportunity to present 

evidence on the issue of the animal’s dangerousness. The court may admit all 

131



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 22 

 

relevant evidence, including incident reports and the affidavits of witnesses, 

photographs and video tapes, limit the scope of discovery, and may shorten 

the time to produce records or witnesses. 

 

 In the event that the animal in question has caused injury to any person, the 

municipal judge may impound the animal, at the owner’s expense, pending 

the hearing and determination of the complaint. If the court finds that the 

animal is potentially dangerous or vicious, it may make any orders authorized 

by this chapter or other laws, including but not limited to assessment of fines 

and costs as provided in this Code. 

 

3. If a determination is made that the animal is potentially dangerous or vicious 

and no appeal is filed, the owner or keeper shall comply with the municipal 

court’s order no later than fourteen (14) days following the rendering of the 

decision. If the owner or keeper of the animal contests the determination, he 

or she may, within fourteen (14) days of the municipal court’s decision appeal 

the decision to the circuit court of the county. All filing fees and costs shall he 

paid by the owner or keeper of the animal. The owner or keeper of the animal 

shall serve notice upon the City that the appeal has been filed. 

 

 4. The Circuit Court shall conduct a hearing de novo, and make its own 

determination as to potential danger and viciousness and make other orders 

authorized by this chapter, based upon the evidence presented. The court may 

admit all relevant evidence, including incident reports and the affidavits of 

witnesses, limit the scope of discovery, and may shorten the time to produce 

records or witnesses. If the court rules the animal to be potentially dangerous 

or vicious, compliance with the order shall begin within upon receiving 

Circuit Court Order. 

 

 5. The determination of the circuit court shall be final and conclusive upon all 

parties. However, the animal control authority shall have the right, following 

due process, to later declare an animal to be vicious or to determine that the 

animal constitutes a threat to the public health and safety, for any subsequent 

actions of the animal. 

 

F.  REGULATION OF POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS OR VICIOUS ANIMALS 

 

If it is determined at the hearing that the animal is dangerous or vicious, the Court 

may order the following: 

 

1. Confinement: 

 

a) Owners shall provide an exterior perimeter fence suitable to contain 

an average animal of the same type.  The perimeter fence shall be 

132



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 23 

 

constructed of chain link or wooden privacy type and shall be at least 

four (4) feet in height. 

 

b) Owners shall provide an additional fence or pen of adequate size 

inside the perimeter fence to humanely confine the vicious animal. 

 

1) This additional fence or pen may not share common fencing 

with the perimeter fence. 

 

 2) This additional fence or pen must have secure sides and a 

secure top attached at all sides. 

 

3) All four sides of this additional fence or pen must be sunk at 

least two feet into the ground or the fence or pen must be built 

over a concrete pad to prevent the animal from digging out. 

 

4) The additional fence or pen must have an inward-opening 

gate and shall be kept locked at all times by pad lock or key 

lock except when tending to the care of the animal. 

 

5) The sides of this additional fence or pen shall be from ground 

to top at least twice the height of the animal, the height of the 

animal being measured from its shoulders. 

 

6) The additional fence or pen must not be positioned so that 

neighbors or passersby have access to the animal.  It must be 

no less than twenty (20) feet from any neighboring property 

line. 

 

7) Signs shall be posted on each side of this additional fence or 

pen stating that a vicious animal is enclosed and shall specify 

the type of animal enclosed, i.e. “Vicious Dog”.  Signs must 

be printed and legible from 20 feet. 

 

8) The pen or structure must also provide the animal with 

protection from the elements and must at all times be kept in 

sanitary condition. 

 

c) Whenever the animal is outside either the additional fence or pen 

provided for this section: 

 

1) It must be attended by the owner; 

 

2) It must be restrained by a secure collar and leash or rope to 

133



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 24 

 

no longer than eight (8) feet and of sufficient strength to 

prevent escape; and 

 

3) It must be securely muzzled so as to effectively prevent 

such animal from biting another animal or person. 

 

d) No vicious animal shall be allowed outside the owner’s property 

except in emergencies or for normal or necessary medical or health 

related treatment. 

 

  2. Destruction of a Vicious Dog 

 

In the event it is determined at the hearing that the release of the animal 

would create a significant threat to the public health, safety and welfare, the 

animal may be humanely destroyed by the Department of Animal Control. 

 

 

  3. When it is Determined that the Animal is not Dangerous or Vicious 

 

In the event it is determined at the hearing that the animal is not vicious, the 

court shall inform the complainant of said findings. 

 

G. MINOR OWNER OR KEEPER 

 

In the event that the owner or keeper of a potentially dangerous or vicious animal is a 

minor, the parent or guardian of such minor shall be liable for all injuries and 

property damage sustained by any person or domestic animal caused by an 

unprovoked attack by such potentially dangerous or vicious animal. 

 

H.  PROCEDURE UPON LOSS, SALE OR TRANSFER OF ANIMAL 

 

The owner or keeper of a potentially dangerous or vicious animal shall notify the 

department of animal control or the police department immediately if such potentially 

dangerous or vicious animal is loose or missing or if the potentially dangerous or 

vicious animal has attacked or wounded a human being or another animal. If the 

animal in question dies, or is sold, transferred, or permanently removed from the city 

or county where the owner or keeper resides, the owner of a potentially dangerous or 

vicious animal shall notify the animal control department of the changed condition 

and new location of the animal in writing within two (2) working days. If the owner 

or keeper of a potentially dangerous or vicious animal moves the animal to a different 

address within the city limits of the City, such owner or keeper shall notify the 

department of animal control of such fact and the new address within twenty-four 

(24) hours. 

 

134



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 25 

 

I.  KEEPING POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS OR VICIOUS ANIMALS 

 

It shall be unlawful for any owner, keeper or other person to be in violation of any 

provision of this chapter or any order of any court as provided in this chapter.  Any 

owner or keeper found to be in violation of this section shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall be punishable as provided in Subsection J of this Section. 

 

J. PENALTY FOR VIOLATION 

 

 The penalty for violation of any provision of this section shall be as follows: 

 

1
st
 Offense     Not less than $100.00 or more than $350.00 

and/or not to exceed 6 months in jail; 

 

2
nd

 and Subsequent Offenses  Not less than $350.00 or more than $500.00 

and/or not to exceed six (6) months in jail. 

 

 

In addition, the Court shall assess the violator with any and all costs incurred for the 

impoundment and/or destruction of the dog.   

 

K.  CONFINEMENT GENERALLY 

 

No owner, keeper or harborer of an animal shall permit a vicious or dangerous dog to 

be kept on a chain, rope or other type of leash outside of its fence and/or pen unless it 

is under physical control of a leash.  Such dogs may not be leashed or chained to 

inanimate objects such as trees, posts, buildings, etc. outside of the perimeter fence 

and/or pen.  No vicious or dangerous dog may be kept on a porch, patio or in any 

other portion of the house or structure that would allow the dog to exit such building 

or structure on its own volition.  In addition, no such animal may be kept in a house 

or structure where screen doors are the only obstacle preventing the dog from exiting 

the structure.  

  L. REGISTRATION OF VICIOUS DOGS 

 

All dangerous or vicious dogs as defined herein or as found to be vicious after a 

Municipal Court hearing shall be registered on the City’s website.  Such registry shall 

include the address where the dog is located and identifying information on the dog, 

including two (2) identifying color photographs of the dog.  The registry shall not 

contain the name or names of the owners or tenants at said location.   

 

SECTION XXIV.  DONATIONS TO ANIMAL SHELTERS 

 

This section shall establish an additional procedure for donations to the City of Daphne 

135



ORDINANCE 2013-45 

ANIMAL CONTROL  

PAGE 26 

 

Animal Shelter via online payment at the City of Daphne Animal Shelter website through 

generally accepted credit cards. 

 

SECTION XXV.  SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence or part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not 

affect or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and 

enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence and part thereof separately and 

independently of each other. 

 

SECTION XXVI. REPEALER 

 

Ordinance Nos. 1998-33, 2001-02, 2003-11, 2007-27, 2010-56, 2010-67 and 2013-13 are 

hereby repealed in their entirety.  All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with 

the provision of this Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

 

 

SECTION XXVII. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF _____________ 2013. 

 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

_______________________________               

                                  DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

136



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2013-46 
 
 

AN   ORDINANCE   ADDING/AMENDING   THE  CITY  OF  DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT  ORDINANCE 2011-54, AS ADOPTED BY THE 

CITY COUNCIL ON JULY 18, 2011  

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes that 

certain revisions to the City of Daphne Land Use & Development Ordinance are  necessary for the proper 

administration of said Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne Planning Commission reviewed such changes at its regularly 

scheduled Commission meeting  on the 27
th
 day of June, 2013, and has made a favorable recommendation 

for adoption to the City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendment has been provided to the public as required 

by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a public Hearing 

was held before the City Council on August 19, 2013. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 11-14(h) OPEN SPACE PROVISIONS 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission acknowledges that residential subdivision 

developments come in many varieties; and, acknowledges amenities for common open space and 

recreation should be tailored to meet the needs of the target market for each subdivision; and, 

acknowledges the existence and viability of existing municipal recreation areas throughout the 

city; and, acknowledges the need for increased flexibility and innovative common open space 

and recreation area design; therefore, after careful review and consideration, the Planning 

Commission hereby submits to the city council a recommendation for guidance in achieving 

proper design as an amendment to the subdivision provisions of the Land Use and Development 

Ordinance as follows: 

 

 That Article XI entitled “Common Open Space Provisions”, denoted as section 11-14(h), and is 

hereby deleted in its entirety and is replaced as follows: 

 

11-14(h)  Common Open Space and Recreation Provisions 

Common open space and recreation area set asides shall include formal recreation areas and/or 

natural open space areas.   

 

There are two types of formal recreation areas: passive and active. Passive recreation areas may 

include but shall not be limited to: open areas that include arranged plantings, gardens, gazebos 

or similar structures, fountains, sculptures, and other forms of public art, pedestrian walk ways, 

dog parks, picnic areas, general landscaped areas, flower gardens, and other uses typical for 

passive recreation.   Active recreation uses may include but shall not be limited to: playground or 

park for local or neighborhood use with swing sets, ball fields, tennis courts, jogging trails, 

clubhouses, swimming pools, including accompanying accessory structures, and any other 

similar use suitable for the common enjoyment of the residents.   

137



 

ORDINANCE 2013-46    AMENDING THE LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE          PAGE   2 

 

Natural open space areas that preserve and conserve the natural condition and hydrology of the 

property should be included as well as tree groves, wetlands, associated wetland buffers, rock 

outcrops, pastoral areas, floodplains, lakes, streams, rivers, wildlife habitat, utility and 

conservation easements, and scenic vistas and trails. Detention ponds and related storm water 

facilities, especially low impact development measures, may also be included. 

Applicability  

Ten percent of each proposed single family or multifamily residential development shall be set 

aside for common open space and recreation area. Common Open Space and Recreation 

Provisions shall apply to each residential development within the corporate limits and 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Daphne except as exempted below.  

Exemptions  

Common Open Space and Recreation Provisions shall not apply in the following cases: 

Where a unified planned single family residential development (i.e., under single ownership and 

planned in multiple phases) is five acres (5 ac) or less in total area and the minimum lot size 

exceeds twenty thousand square feet (20,000 sq. ft.); or,   

Where the entire subdivision is zoned R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential. 

Proximity and Access to Existing Recreation Areas  

The planning commission may allow flexibility in cases or an exemption to these provisions 

where a site is located adjacent to or within one-half (1/2) mile or two thousand six hundred and 

forty (2,640) linear feet of any municipal park, sports complex, or similar public use that either 

currently exists, is under construction, or is planned by a municipality or governmental 

corporation at the time of preliminary plat submission.  Distance shall be measured as a radius 

from the center point of the preliminary plat. If the proposed subdivision boundary abuts or is 

contiguous to any municipal park, sports complex, or similar public use that either currently 

exists, is under construction, or is planned by a municipality or governmental corporation at the 

time of preliminary plat submission.  The planning commission may impose other conditions to 

guarantee pedestrian access to the aforementioned park or facility.  Conditions may include but 

shall not be limited to sidewalks, pedestrian trails, walkways or similar means of access.  

Phasing/Implementation 

A common open space and recreation area plan shall be a provided as a component of the 

subdivision master plan for single family or multi-family residential subdivision 

development, except where herein exempted.   

Upon preliminary plat submission for the 1st phase of the development an agreement shall be 

established for the implementation of the common open space and recreation area plan.  The 

agreement shall be made using appropriate forms as provided by the city and shall include:   

a)   the proposed common open space and recreation area plan;  

b)   and a cost estimate of all work associated with the common open space and recreation 

area plan improvements (excludes land and/or utility costs), and;  

c)   a renewable surety bond valid for two years in the amount of one hundred and ten percent 

(110%) of the cost estimate or a letter of credit drawn on an Alabama based bank.   

Performance Standards 

The following factors shall be considered to determine the location for common open space  

138



 

ORDINANCE 2013-46     AMENDING THE LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE    PAGE   3 

 

and recreation areas. 

Where possible and appropriate, common open space and recreation areas shall be readily 

accessible and useable by property owners.  

To the maximum extent practical, a portion of the common open space and recreation area 

should provide focal points for the development.   

Common open space and recreation areas shall have at least one direct access to a public 

right-of-way.  

The common open space and recreation areas shall be compact and contiguous unless the land is 

used as a continuation of or link to an existing or planned adjacent open space resource or where 

specific natural or topographic features require a different configuration. 

In all developments, due regard shall be shown for all natural features such as large trees, 

heritage trees, water courses, historical spots, and similar community assets which, if preserved, 

will add attractiveness and value to the overall development.    
 

      

                      SECTION II:   AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 8, DEFINITIONS OF TERMS 
 

             Amending Definition of Terms to add “No Clear Zone”  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission acknowledges the term ‘no clear zone’ has been 

specified on one or more subdivision plats and may be used on future subdivision plats, and, that 

Article 8 of the Land Use and Development Ordinance does not provide a definition of said term; 

acknowledges the need to define the term for clarification and future reference; therefore, after 

careful review and consideration, the Planning Commission hereby submits to the city council a 

recommendation to add to Article 8 of the Land Use and Development Ordinance the following 

terms: 

 

No clear zone.  An area designed to visually and physically set one area apart from another.  

Said area shall be perpetually preserved in its naturally wooded state and shall not be cleared, 

cut, timbered, or altered within twenty five feet (25 ft.) of the rear property line of either 

underbrush or vegetation or trees, except to the extent necessary to install a fence or wall along 

the property line(s), to install utilities within a utility easement, or remove trees that have died 

naturally shall be allowed. Any allowable modifications or alterations in a no clear zone must be 

permitted by the Building Inspections Department. Replanting and reforestation shall be 

required when more than one half of the utility easement is destroyed or removed by a utility 

company.  

 

SECTION III:   AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 8 AND 35 ADDING REFERENCE TO   

                            THE COMMUNITY STANDARDS ORDINANCE 2013-38 

 

 Amending Definition of Terms and Table of Permitted Uses as related to the Community 

Standards Ordinance 2013-38.  
                

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission acknowledges the anticipated adoption of 

Ordinance 2013-38, Community Standards Ordinance  by the City Council; and, several terms 

related to land use and land development are included therein, and, these terms must be codified 

in Article 8 and Article 35 of the Land Use and Development Ordinance for reference and  

139



 

ORDINANCE 2013-46        AMENDING THE LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE        PAGE   4 
 

 

clarity, therefore, the Planning Commission hereby submits to the city council a recommendation  

to add terms to Article 8 and to add reference to the Community Standards Ordinance in Article 

35 of the Land Use and Development Ordinance as follows: 

 

Section A.   Amend Article 8 

 

Adult Cabaret/Entertainment Facility. A nightclub, bar, theater, concert hall, auditorium, 

restaurant or similar establishment which, having entertainment, staff, live performances or 

appearances by nude or topless females, or entertainment, live performances or appearances 

characterized by their emphasis on matters depicting, describing or relating to nudity or sexual 

activity as permitted in Ordinance 2013-38, Community Standards Ordinance. 

 

Adult Companionship Establishment.  An establishment of business which provides the service 

of engaging in or listing to conversation, talk or discussion between an employee of the 

establishment and a customer, if such service is distinguished or characterized by their emphasis 

on matters depicting, describing or relating to nudity or sexual activity as permitted in Ordinance 

2013-38, Community Standards Ordinance.  

 

Adult Novelty/Book Store.  An establishment which, as one of its profit Centers, offers for sale 

or rental books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, films, motion 

pictures, videocassettes, slides, tapes, records, compact disks or other form of visual or audio 

representations or instruments, devices, games, costumes, props or paraphernalia (excluding 

contraceptives) which are distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matters depicting, 

describing or relating to nudity or sexual activity as permitted in Ordinance 2013-38, Community 

Standards Ordinance. 

 

Adult Theater.  A commercial establishment where films, motion pictures, or other photographic 

reproductions are regularly shown or created which are distinguished or characterized by their 

emphasis on matters depicting, describing or relating to nudity or sexual activity as permitted in 

Ordinance 2013-38, Community Standards Ordinance. 

 

Tattoo Facility.  A use as permitted in Ordinance 2013-38, Community Standards Ordinance.  

The geographic location at which an individual does one or more of the following for 

compensation:  places an indelible mark upon the body of another individual by the insertion of a 

pigment in or under the skin; places an indelible design upon the body of another individual by 

production of scars; the perforation of human tissue other than ear for a nonmedical purpose. 

 

Sexually Oriented Businesses. Adult cabaret/entertainment facilities, adult companionship 

establishment, adult novelty/book stores or adult theaters as permitted in Ordinance 2013-38, 

Community Standards Ordinance. 

 

Sexually Oriented Business Permit.  As defined in Section II of Ordinance 2013-38, Community 

Standards Ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

140



 

 

 
ORDINANCE 2013-46        AMENDING THE LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE        PAGE   5 
 

 

Section B. Amend Article 35 

 

In accordance with the Community Standards Ordinance, as permitted in Ordinance 2013-38 the  

Planning Commission recommends the city council amend Article 35, Table of Permitted Uses 

as follows: 

 

Any use, as permitted in Ordinance 2013-38, Community Standards Ordinance, except a tattoo 

facility, may be permitted in a B-2 zone district upon Planning Commission review and approval 

or in a C/I zone district by right.  A tattoo facility may be permitted in a B-1 upon Planning 

Commission review or B-2 zone by right.  In all cases, the provisions of Ordinance 2013-38 must 

be satisfied for each use noted therein.  

 

 SECTION IV: CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES 

 

  That any Ordinance heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama, which 

is in conflict with this Ordinance, be and  is hereby placed to the extent of such conflict. 

    
SECTION V. SEVERABILITY 

 

 That the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

hereof.  

 

SECTION VI: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS           DAY OF                     , 2013. 

 

 

                                                   

_____________________________________ 

DANE HAYGOOD, 

MAYOR                                         

             

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

REBECCA A HAYES,  

CITY CLERK 

141


	AGENDA  -  August 19 
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes - August 5
	Council  Work Session Minutes - August 12
	Council Strategic Plan Minutes - August 12
	Public Hearing Info
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes
	Building & Property Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Mintes - August 14
	Environmental Advisory Board Minutes
	PublicWorks Motion
	Report of Special Boards
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES--7-10-13
	Rec Board Nominees
	Report of Officers
	Parade Permit - Mystic Order of Persephone
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2013-43 - FINAL REVISION - Emp. Hankbook 7.30.13 Chapter 1 - Firearms and Ammunition in the Workplace PolicyFinal 2013 (4)
	2013-45 - ORD - ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE (3)
	2013-46 - AMEND LUO -Common Space - No Clear Zone - Add Community Standards



